
 Agenda Item B.2 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Meeting Date: May 6, 2008 
 
 
  
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Steve Wagner, Community Services Director 
 
CONTACT: Rosemarie Gaglione, Senior Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Professional Services Agreement for the San Jose Creek 

Capacity Improvement Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
A. Authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 

Services Agreement with Penfield & Smith for Preliminary 
Engineering/Environmental Review of the San Jose Creek Capacity Improvement 
Project in an amount not to exceed $315,951. 

B. Extend the contract period to June 30, 2010. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Overflows from San Jose Creek during flood events impact a large portion of the Goleta 
Old Town area. A project to eliminate the overflows and associated flood impacts is 
included in the Goleta Old Town Implementation Plan and has been identified as a 
priority capital improvement project by the Redevelopment Agency Board.  
 
In March 2007, a professional services contract was awarded to Penfield & Smith 
Engineers (P&S) in the amount of $665,845 for Final Design Services and completion of 
the Environmental Document. Due to a change in the scope of the project, and the 
additional work that will be required, an additional appropriation In the amount of 
$315,951 is requested. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The original scope of the San Jose Creek Capacity Improvement Project, selected 
through the alternatives analysis, included the reconstruction of the existing Hollister 
Avenue Bridge over San Jose Creek and the removal of approximately 300 feet of the 
existing concrete trapezoidal channel near Hollister Avenue. This section of channel is 
proposed to be reconstructed with vertical sides and a natural channel bottom. 
 
A comprehensive hydraulic analysis of the proposed project was performed by P&S to 
determine the resulting floodplain limits. The plans reached the 35% complete stage 
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and the Mitigated Negative Declaration/Environmental Assessment (MND/EA) was 
completed and approved by the Planning Agency in April 2008. The Conditional Letter 
of Map Revision (CLOMR) application was submitted to FEMA. 
 
When the City of Goleta went to the County Board of Supervisors to enter into a MOU 
regarding partial County funding for the project, the Board asked that the City of Goleta 
include fish passage in the design. 
 
The City formed a Fish Passage Workshop Group and hired Ed Zapel, an engineer 
specializing in fish passage and barrier removal design. The result is a project that will 
hold the 100 year flows and provide for fish passage. An addendum to the final MND/EA 
was written to account for the design changes necessary to incorporate fish passage. 
The MND/EA Addendum was approved by the Planning Agency on April 15, 2008. 
 
Much of the work that had been done prior to the requirement to include fish passage 
had to be redone. The Hollister Avenue Bridge was going to be replaced. Even though 
the channel plans were at the 35% stage, the bridge plans were at the 65% level. 
CH2MHill had already completed $87,000 of work on the design. The new design will 
cost $91,000.  
 
The original design approach for supporting the channel walls was to use piles, lagging 
and tiebacks. Fugro completed $54,000 worth of work on that portion of the design 
effort. Now that the design has changed, a soil nail construction approach to supporting 
the walls is needed. Penfield and Smith are subcontracting that portion to TerraSearch, 
Inc, a firm with expertise in soil nail technology. This effort will cost $76,000.  
 
The unanticipated studies and hydraulic analysis required for Penfield and Smith to 
arrive at the new design concept for the fish passage cost $62,000. There is still 
approximately $20,000 worth of hydraulic analysis needed to refine the design.  
 
The new design calls for widening the channel on the east side, and Caltrans will need 
to relinquish some of their right of way to the project. This will require a detailed 
boundary survey and title description. Two companies, 1). Schott and Company and 2). 
Hamner, Jewell and Associates are being subcontracted to handle land appraisals and 
acquisition. The combined cost will be approximately $58,000. 
 
The additional work items are summarized below: 
 
 Design Work  Previous Design  Redesign 
 Bridge Design  $92,000   $96,000 
 Structural Support  $57,000   $80,000 
 Out of Scope  Work      $62,000 
 Additional Hydraulic Analysis    $20,000 
 Additional Appraisal and Acquisitions   $57,950 
 
    TOTAL    $315,950 
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Even though the design costs have increased substantially, the construction cost is 
holding constant, even with the inclusion of a fish passage component. Not having to 
replace the bridge will save over $2,000,000. The City had planned to incorporate fish 
passage in the future but by doing it at the same time as the flood control project the 
City will not have to spend additional design and construction dollars in the future. 
 
Considerable effort and patience was applied to the project by all parties involved and 
especially Penfield and Smith. Ten months after the approval of the original MND/EA we 
are once again at the 35% plan level.  
 
Staff is recommending the project scope be revised to formally include fish passage in 
the San Jose Creek Channel; the original scope of the contract did not include this 
effort.  The additional cost to do the additional design, hydraulic analysis, revised 
construction approach and value engineering will increase the contract by $315,951 
from the original cost of $665,845 to $981,796.  
 
GOLETA STRATEGIC PLAN:  
 
The San Jose Creek Channel Capacity and Fish Passage Improvement Project is the 
highest priority capital improvement project for the City of Goleta and is consistent with 
the goal in the Goleta Strategic Plan entitled “EMPHASIZE OLD TOWN 
REVITALIZATION.”  The increased flood conveyance capacity of the channel will allow 
for the redrawing of the 100 year FEMA flood hazard map which will encourage 
commercial and residential investment in Goleta Old Town.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
The current P&S contract value is $665,845 for final design engineering, environmental 
review and the additional hydraulic analysis.  An amendment to the professional 
services contract with P&S in an amount not to exceed $315,951 to account for all of 
the project revisions and moving forward with a new design concept is recommended. 
Penfield and Smith have done a commendable job of “going with the flow” on this 
project as we all worked toward creating a concept that would satisfy the concerns of all 
stakeholders. A copy of the proposed P&S contract amendment and cost proposal is 
included as Attachment C to this report.  If approved, the revised total contract amount 
would be $981,796. 
 
The addition of a fish passage component keeps the County on board as a funding 
partner and eliminates fish passage as an issue to address during the permit application 
process. 
 
The FY 2008-09 Capital Improvement Program Budget includes CDBG and RDA funds 
for the final design effort.   
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Submitted By: Reviewed By: Approved By: 
 
 
 
__________________ __________________________ ____________________ 
Steve Wagner Michelle Greene Daniel Singer 
Community Services  Acting Administrative Services  City Manager 
 Director    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. March 5, 2007 Agenda Report 
2. Revised Scope of Services 
3. Amendment No. 1 to Penfield & Smith contract for Preliminary 

Engineering/Environmental for the San Jose Creek Capacity Improvements Project 













































































AMENDMENT 1 
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF GOLETA 

AND 
PENFIELD & SMITH ENGINEERS, INC.   

 
 WHEREAS, An Agreement for Consultant Services  (“AGREEMENT”), was  
entered into the 5th day of March 2007, by and between the City of Goleta, a 
California municipal corporation (“CITY”) and Penfield & Smith Engineers, a 
California corporation, (“CONSULTANT”) for preliminary engineering and 
environmental review services for the San Jose Creek Capacity Improvement 
Project; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 1 of said Agreement provides for the revision of the term 
of the Agreement upon written agreement of both parties; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2 of said Agreement sets forth the scope of services to be 
performed; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4 of said Agreement sets forth the compensation to be 
paid to Consultant for work performed.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:  
  
 AMENDMENT 1  The term of the Agreement between CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall be extended through June 30, 2010 in an amount not to exceed 
$981,796 as shown in the Exhibit 1. 
 
All other provision of the agreement shall remain in full force and affect. 
     
 
CITY OF GOLETA      CONSULTANT: 
 
 
By_____________________________  By_________________________ 
     Daniel Singer, City Manager        Name:___________________  
     May 6, 2008          Title:   ___________________ 

     Date:  ___________________ 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   By     
           Name:____________________  

                         Title:   ____________________  
    Date:  ____________________  

By_________________________________  
     Julie Hayward Biggs, City Attorney   
     May 6, 2008   
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